

**Chula Vista Municipal Code Amendment
Curb Cafés and Sidewalk Cafés**

**Strike-out/Underline of Proposed Text Changes to
Chula Vista Municipal Code Chapter 12.28 – Encroachments**

The List of Sections for Chula Vista Municipal Code Chapter 12.28 is proposed to be modified as follows:

**Chapter 12.28
ENCROACHMENTS**

Sections:

- 12.28.010** Purpose and intent of provisions.
- 12.28.020** Council authorization required when – Procedure.
- 12.28.030** Improvements not requiring Council authorization—~~Temporary encroachments.~~
- 12.28.040** Installations exempt from fee requirements.
- 12.28.041** Installations exempt from permit requirements.
- 12.28.050** Maintenance and removal agreement – Required when – Contents.
- 12.28.060** Fees – Payment required when – Schedule – Exemptions.
- 12.28.070** Refunds of permit fees.
- 12.28.080** Bond requirements.
- 12.28.090** Insurance and Indemnity requirements – Exemptions – Liability agreements.

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.010 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.010 Purpose and intent of provisions.

It is the intent of the City Council to authorize the use of, or encroachment into, the public rights-of-way for certain private purposes by property owners in those instances and under such circumstances that said use or encroachment does not interfere with or obstruct the overriding public use for which said rights-of-way have been dedicated. It is the purpose of the Council in adopting this chapter to provide procedures and regulations so that such property owners may make appropriate use of the dedicated public rights-of-way adjacent to or contiguous to their private property. The uses and encroachments permitted by this chapter are in addition to those specifically authorized under ~~Chapters 44 and 45 of the 1967 Uniform California~~ Building Code as adopted by the City, which uses and encroachments are exempt from the provisions of this ~~chapter~~Chapter.

Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, it is unlawful for any person to encroach or make or cause to be made any encroachment in the public right-of-way without first obtaining an encroachment permit. No use of any right-of-way or any other interest or property pursuant to this Chapter shall create or vest in a permittee any ownership or other interest in the right-of-way, streets, or other property or interest of the City. Permits issued in accordance with this Chapter may be revoked at any time deemed necessary by the Director of Public Works or City Engineer. In addition to any other remedies available to the City for violations of the Chula Vista Municipal Code (CVMC), any encroachment for which a permit is required and for which no permit has been issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be deemed a public nuisance which may be abated as provided in the CVMC.

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.020 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.020 Council authorization required when – Procedure.

Prior to the issuance of an encroachment permit, the following encroachments are required to be approved by the City Council:

A. Underground structures, facilities, or improvements within the public right-of-way.

B. Overhead structures, facilities, or improvements within the public right-of-way with a vertical clearance of eight (8) feet or more above grade.

C. Other encroachments within the public right-of-way which, in the opinion of the Director of Public Works or City Engineer, are of sufficient public interest to require City Council approval.

D. Other encroachments within the public right-of-way which are not otherwise authorized by this Chapter.

~~All encroachments in the public rights-of-way shall be authorized by resolution of the City Council, except those specifically delegated to the City Engineer and those exempted below; provided further, that the following types of encroachments are specifically reserved for Council authorization.~~

~~Applications for permits for which the provisions of this chapter or schedule of fees do not properly apply shall require authorization by City Council resolution.~~

In all cases requiring authorization by resolution of the City Council, the Director of Public Works or City Engineer shall submit the application with his or her recommendations to the City Manager for presentation to the City Council. Upon approval of the City Council, the Director of Public Works or City Engineer shall collect the prescribed fees, ensure execution of all required agreements, and issue the required permit.

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.030 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.030 Improvements not requiring Council authorization—~~Temporary encroachments.~~

~~Unless required to be approved by the City Council pursuant to CVMC section 12.28.020, the Director of Public Works or City Engineer may permit encroachments in the public right-of-way upon submission and approval of an encroachment permit application, execution of an encroachment maintenance and removal agreement as required by CVMC 12.28.050, and payment of all required fees including but not limited to those required by CVMC 12.28.060.~~

~~A. The City Engineer is authorized to issue encroachment permits without prior authorization from the City Council for the installation of the following improvements:~~

- ~~1. Fences, in accordance with zoning and building codes;~~
- ~~2. Retaining walls, in accordance with zoning and building codes, not to exceed five feet in height.~~

~~B. In addition thereto, the Director of Public Works may permit temporary encroachments in the public right-of-way upon application for an encroachment permit and the payment of the fee as prescribed in CVMC 12.12.100 for the placing of materials or equipment in the public right-of-way for a reasonable period as determined by the Director of Public Works and indicated on such permit; provided, that the materials are of such a nature as to be easily removable and cause no obstruction to the free passage of vehicular and pedestrian traffic along the public right-of-way, and the encroachment is necessitated by the applicant's construction or development of his property.~~

~~C. All other encroachments in the public right-of-way of any nature other than those defined as exempt or as temporary shall constitute permanent encroachments for which permits may be issued and fees collected as prescribed in this title. The issuance of said permits by the Director of Public Works shall conform with the requirements of this title.~~

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.041 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.041 Installations exempt from permit requirements.

The following structures, facilities, and improvements shall be exempt from the requirements of this Chapter: Sidewalk-sidewalk underdrains, irrigation systems that serve a single-family property, are

located in the parkway, and are maintained by the fronting property owner; and private utility systems and structures, facilities, or improvements installed by the City shall be exempt from the requirements of this chapter.

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.050 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.050 Maintenance and removal agreement – Required when – Contents.

Applications for encroachment permits for any buildings, ~~or~~ structures, facilities, or improvements of any nature shall be accompanied by the required application fee(s) in the sum as presently designated, or as may be in the future amended, in the master fee schedule, ~~and an~~ encroachment permits will be issued in accordance with the terms of an encroachment maintenance and removal agreement, which shall authorize the construction and use of the building, ~~or~~ structure, facility, or improvement and shall be signed by the property owner and properly acknowledged to allow for recordation. The agreement shall be prepared by the City Engineer, approved as to form by the City Attorney, and at a minimum contain the following ~~covenants with the City terms~~:

A. The encroachment shall be installed and maintained in safe and sanitary condition at the sole cost, risk and responsibility of the owner ~~and successor in interest~~, who shall agree to indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless with respect thereto.

B. The agreement is made for the direct benefit of the property owner's land described in the agreement, and the covenants therein shall run with the property, shall constitute an obligation and burden upon the property, and shall be binding upon the assigns and successors of the owners.

C. The encroachment shall be abandoned, removed or relocated by the property owner upon demand in writing by the Director of Public Works or the City Engineer. Upon such demand, The the property owner must remove or relocate the encroachment within 30 calendar days after such notice or within such longer period as may be provided specifically within the demand or agreement in the instance of buildings or structures which would require a longer period to effectuate such removal or relocation. If the property owner fails to remove or relocate the encroachment within the period allotted, the City Engineer may cause such work to be done and the cost thereof shall be imposed as a lien upon the property as provided in CVMC 12.12.110, relating to removal of unauthorized obstructions in the public rights-of-way.

D. The encroachment maintenance and removal agreement ~~for buildings or structures built over or upon the public rights-of-way~~ shall be recorded in the office of the county recorder of San Diego County, ~~and shall constitute an obligation and burden upon the property~~; provided, however, that the agreement encompassing encroachments authorized by the City Engineer pursuant to CVMC 12.28.030 and 12.28.040 need not be recorded.

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.060 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.060 Fees – Payment required when – Schedule – Exemptions.

A. The required fee(s) for engineering and permits required by this section shall be collected by the Director of Public Works or City Engineer. No permit shall be issued and no work in the public rights-of-way shall be permitted until the fees applicable under this section have been received by the Director of Public Works or City Engineer.

B. The state of California, or any of its political subdivisions, or any governmental agency shall file applications for permits and shall be issued permits as required by this section; provided, however, that no fees shall be required when the work is done by persons working directly for the state or agency.

C. A contractor working for the state, or any of its political subdivisions, or any governmental agency shall obtain a permit and pay the required permit fee(s).

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.070 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.070 Refunds of permit fees.

In the event a permit fee refund is requested by the permittee, and the Director of Public Works or City Engineer has determined that it is in the public interest to allow the permittee to abandon the work, the Director of Public Works or City Engineer shall cancel the permit and refund the unused portion of the fee, but no more than 90 percent of the plan preparation and preliminary survey fee, and 90 percent of the inspection fee, if no work has been done by the Development Services, Public Works, or Engineering Departments.

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.080 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.080 Bond requirements.

Every person constructing buildings or structures as encroachments in the public rights-of-way shall provide a performance bond as required by CVMC 12.20.020 through 12.20.090.

~~No~~The Director of Public Works or City Engineer may, if approved by the City Attorney, waive the requirement for providing a performance bond, under the provisions of this ~~chapter~~Chapter if he or she determines doing so would not create a material risk to the City or the public,~~shall be required for the construction of those encroachments for which authorization has been specifically delegated to the Director of Public Works and for which he has authority to issue a permit as set forth in CVMC 12.28.030 and 12.28.040.~~

Chula Vista Municipal Code Section 12.28.090 is proposed to be modified as follows:

12.28.090 Insurance and Indemnity requirements – Exemptions – Liability agreements.

A. The Director of Public Works or City Engineer may require submission of evidence of liability insurance which has been approved by the City Attorney, executed and delivered by a reliable insurance company authorized to carry on an insurance business in the state, by the terms which said insurance company assumes responsibility for injuries to persons and property on behalf of its policy holder(s) as a result of constructing the work and/or storing materials in the street as set forth in the permit. The insurance, when required, will endorse City as an Additional Insured, and shall be in the following amounts:

1. Five ~~One~~ hundred thousand dollars (\$~~100~~500,000) for property damage;
2. One million ~~Two hundred thousand~~ dollars (\$~~1,200~~2,000,000) for death or injuries to any person/entity in any one occurrence;
3. ~~Five hundred thousand~~Two million dollars (\$~~2,050~~2,000,000) for death or injuries to two or more ~~persons~~parties in any one occurrence.

B. Governmental agencies, including the state of California and its political subdivisions, shall not be required to provide the insurance required by this section, but shall be required to indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless as provided in CVMC 12.28.090(D).C. Any permittee for whom insurance requirements have been waived shall be required to hold harmless and defend the City, its elective and appointive boards, officers, agents and employees, from any liability for damage or claims for damage for personal injury, including death, as well as from claims which may arise from the permittee, or any subcontractors or agents or employees thereof, in performing under the permit.

D. To the maximum extent allowed by law, the City shall not incur or assume any direct or indirect liability to any permittee or third party as a result of having issued a an encroachment permit pursuant to this Chapter, or otherwise approving any encroachment in the public right-of-way. As a condition to the issuance of any encroachment permit, the permittee and its agents, employees, invitees, contractors, and any other persons or entities under permittee's control, shall be liable for and shall indemnify, protect, defend (at permittee's sole cost and expense), and hold harmless the City, and its officers, officials, employees, representatives, and agents from any and all claims, losses, damages, injuries, liabilities, or losses that arise out of, are connected with, or that are in any way related to the City's issuance of an encroachment permit or permittee's use of or encroachment into the public right-of-way.
